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SANTA FE COUNTY  

IFB 2023-0079-GM/APS 

GREATER GLORIETA REGIONAL WELL 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Dear Proponents, 

This addendum is issued to reflect the following immediately.  It shall be the responsibility of 

interested Bidders to adhere to any changes or revisions to the IFB as identified in this Addendum 
No. 1.  This documentation shall become permanent and made part of the departmental files. 

Attachment A: Pre-Bid Sign-In Sheet 

Attachment B:  Exhibit 1-X – Contractor/Subcontractor Clearance Form 

Attachment C: Addendum No. 2 IFB 2022-0234-GM/APS 

Please visit the County’s website at 
https://www.santafecountynm.gov/asd/current_bid_solicitations to view the previous bid which 

includes additional Addendums. 

Question No. 1:  Does the project currently have an estimated mobilization date? 

Answer No. 1:  The County is hoping to have the contract and NTP issued in February. 

Question No. 2:  Are sounds walls required? 

Answer No. 2:  Sound walls are not required 

Question No. 3:  Is there a water meter rental cost? 

Answer No. 3:  The Association will provide the project water at no cost. 

Question No. 4:  What is the cost of water? 

https://www.santafecountynm.gov/asd/current_bid_solicitations
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Answer No. 4:  Project water will be provided by the Association at no cost. 

 

Question No. 5:  Please verify if equipment needs to be pulled in wells that need to be 

abandoned?  If so, what does the Contractor do with the equipment? 

Answer No. 5: In section 3.16B states “pumping equipment shall be removed and disposed of 

by the contractor.”   Both wells, UP-1288 and UP-1643, appear to have pumps, 

cable, and column pipe that need to be removed and disposed of. 

 

Question No. 6:  Are there zone samples for the well? 

Answer No. 6:  As stated in Section 1.1A, 1.1D1, and Bid Sheet Lines 6, 7 and 8, zone testing is 

part of Phase 1.  Within the 7 7/8 inch borehole, a test well shall be installed 

using perforated pipe on drill stem with a pea gravel filter pack and bentonite 

seal.  The test well will be developed using air lifting technique.  A water sample 

will be collected while air lifting or by bailer for chemical 

analyses.  Chemical analyses will be requested for “rush” turnaround 

time.  Water quality results will be used to determine how the project 

proceeds.  If water quality is acceptable, Phase 2 will occurs including final well 

design, ordering of supply well materials, and reaming of borehole to final 

diameter.  If water quality is not acceptable the 7 7/8-inch borehole will be 

abandoned. 

 

Question No. 7:  Are cuttings and fluids  from drilling to be disposed onsite?  If not, where do 

we dispose of cuttings and fluid? 

Answer No. 7:  As stated in Section 1.3E and 3.3A and B, there are three types of materials to 

be properly disposed of during the project: drilling mud, cuttings, and water 

produced during development and aquifer testing.  Drilling mud shall be 

removed from the site and properly disposed of.  Cuttings may be thin spread 

at the site.  As stated in Section 3.3A, water produced during development and 

testing shall be discharged to the ground such damage will be prevented 

including erosion. 

 

Question No. 8:  Please verify bids are hand or mail delivery?  No email? 

Answer No. 8:  Bids may be hand delivere d or mailed.  Electronic bids are NOT accepted. 

 

Question No. 9:  Is there stand by times during zoning sampling? 

Answer No. 9:  Stand by time is not anticipated during zone sampling.  Time will be spent 

constructing, developing up to 16 hours, and sampling the well.  

 

Question No. 10:  Please verify a driller can have a subcontractor for the piping portion of the 

bid? 

Answer No. 10:  Yes, the County has identified the drilling as the main base bid.  Contract 

award will be determined by the lowest responsive base bid.  Also, a bid will 

need to be submitted for the Additive Alternate to be considered responsive 

however, the bid will be awarded on the basis of the base bid and the Additive 

Alternative may be included in the overall project if sufficient funding is 

available.     
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Question No. 11:  Are trees able to be removed for drilling equipment access?  

Answer No. 11: Yes, but only remove the minimum amount of trees that is necessary to get the 

equipment in. Trees can be removed from the site without a permit from the 

County.   

 

Question No. 12:  Please verify with the help of the County the road can be blocked off for 

drilling operations? 

Answer No. 12:  If a County road needs to be blocked off, then the contractor will need to submit 

a TCP for review and a permit issued through the County’s Public Works 

Department. (Please see Attachment C question no. 4).  The Contractor shall 

be responsible for providing Traffic Control in accordance to Santa Fe County 

for all construction activities.  

 

Question No. 13:  Tentative schedule of NOA and NTP 2 months? 

Answer No. 13:  The County is hoping to have the contract and NTP issued in February. 

 

Question No. 14:  Can you please provide contract information for neighbor next to well 

location for storage of drilling equipment and materials? 

Answer No. 14:   You can contact the Greater Glorieta Association’s President, Trent Botkin at 

(575) 644-2210. 

 

Question No. 15:  Bids are to be delivered to old County building on 102 Grant? 

Answer No. 15:  Yes, bids are to be delivered to 102 Grant Avenue. 

 

Question No. 16:  Where does water from development and testing go?  It pumped down the 

road?  Does it have to be pumped into tank and hauled off?  Where do we 

haul it off to? 

Answer No. 16:  As stated in Section 3.3A, water produced during development and testing shall 

be discharged to the ground.  The Contractor will make all erosion control 

measures to prevent any ground damage. 

 

Question No. 17:  Please verify drilling is the main bid.  A driller can only bid on the drilling 

and testing portion and not the water line? 

Answer No. 17:  Please see response to from Question No. 10. 
 

 
Please add this Addendum No 1 to the original proposal documents and refer to proposal documents, 
hereto as such.  This and all subsequent addenda will become part of any resulting contract documents 
and have effects as if original issued.  All other unaffected sections will have their original 

interpretation and remain in full force and effect.  Responders are reminded that any questions or need 
for clarification must be addressed to Amanda Patterson-Sanchez, Procurement Specialist Senior at 
apatterson-sanchez@santafecountynmm.gov.  
 

 

mailto:apatterson-sanchez@santafecountynmm.gov
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Attachment B
EXHIBIT 1-X -

CONTRACTOR/SUBCONTRACTOR CLEARANCE FORM 

Clearance must be granted by the Local Government Division (LGD) prior to contract award. Complete 

one form for each firm/individual’s contractual service. 

Check appropriate box: 

Contracted Grant Administration Contractor Subcontractor 

Architectural Contractor Subcontractor 

Engineering Contractor Subcontractor 

Construction Contractor Subcontractor 

Other   Contractor Subcontractor 

To receive clearance completed this form and mail to: LGD Executive Secretary, Geovanna Losito and LGD/CDB Project Manager, 

Department of Finance and Administration / Local Government Division, Bataan Memorial Building, 407 Galisteo Street, Room 

202, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501; Office # (505) 827-8051. 

or completed this form and email to: Geovanna.Losito@state.nm.us cc: LGD/CDB Project Manager 

CDBG Project   Grantee: 

Contact Person: Phone #:  

Job Description of Work (Exhibit “1-A” of Grant Agreement): 

Name of Firm/Individual: ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

      Unique Entity ID # 

Name of Principal/Owner/Partner:                                                                              Contract Amount: _________________________ 

Submitted By:            Date:   

Send Clearance to: 

Name: Fax #: Phone #:  

Address:   

To be completed by DFA/Local Government Division: 

FEDERAL: Active SAM registration Yes No 

STATE: Labor Enforcement Fund Yes No N/A 

Registration #: Registration Date: Expiration Date:  

Approved by:   Date: 
DFA/Local Government Division 

Rev 6-2022 

mailto:Geovanna.Losito@state.nm.us
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SANTA FE COUNTY  

IFB 2022-0234-GM/APS 

GREATER GLORIETA REGIONAL WELL 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

Dear Proponents, 

This addendum is issued to reflect the following immediately.  It shall be the responsibility of 

interested Bidders to adhere to any changes or revisions to the IFB as identified in this Addendum 

No. 2.  This documentation shall become permanent and made part of the departmental files. 

Attachment B: Exploratory Permit 

Attachment C: Plugging and Abandonment Plan of Operations for UP-1288 

Attachment D:  Plugging and Abandonment Plan of Operations for UP-1643 

Attachment E:  OSE Report on wells at conference center 

Question No. 1:  What is the engineer’s estimate for this project? 

Answer No. 1:  There is no published cost estimate for the project. 

Question No. 2:  What is the total value of funds available for this project? 

Answer No. 2:  County CDBG Grant Agreement, GGMDW Capital Outlay and WTB Fund 

Question No. 3:  Will you break down the pilot hole and production hole of the well into more 

detail with regard to bidding line items? 

Answer No. 3:   See attached revised bid form Attachment A. 

Question No. 4:  How much area is available for staging? 

Answer No. 4:   The contractor is responsible for identifying, selecting, and obtaining a staging 

area.  The County and Greater Glorieta Association (Association) will allow the Contractor to 

use County and Association property.  The Contractor shall obtain approval from the County 

Attachment C
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and the Association for use of their property.  Contractor shall notify the County and 

Association of proposed staging areas.    

 

Question No. 5:  What is the total area that the driller has access to for drilling the well?  Can 

the driller remove several of the trees near the wells? 

Answer No. 5: Sufficient area will be available in the vicinity of the proposed well for drilling 

access and operations. Removal of trees and County Road closure to provide additional area 

may be possible.  Contractor to obtain approval from the County and the Association   and  

total area required will be negotiated with the successful Contractor.  Sufficient area in the 

vicinity of the well is available and the removal of trees and possible closure of the dirt road will 

require coordination with the water system and Santa Fe County. 

 

Question No. 6:  How will lost circulation or unstable formation issues be handled?  Typically, 

this would proceed on a time and materials basis (or some variant thereof) in lieu of the footage 

rate until the hole is completed or circulation is regained. 

Answer No. 6: The following shall be added to Specification Section 13310, Part 3.4: 

PART 3.4. K: LOST CIRCULATION PLAN FOR GLORIETA REPLACEMENT SUPPLY 

WELL 

During the drilling or reaming of the borehole, if there is no return of circulation drilling fluid 

for a period of at least two continuous hours due to no fault of the CONTRACTOR, then 

GLORIETA will compensate the CONTRACTOR for the period of drilling under lost 

circulation conditions, at the CONTRACTOR’S hourly rate in lieu of footage compensation. 

If and when lost circulation conditions are encountered due to hydro geologic conditions, the 

CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CONSULTANT so that GLORIETA is 

informed of the situation and potential costs to be incurred. GLORIETA will provide 

compensation at a rate of cost plus 10-percent markup to the CONTRACTOR for all drilling 

fluid materials and additives used during the period of lost circulation. If and when 

CONTRACTOR is able to control the lost circulation conditions and is able to advance the 

bore hole, then CONTRACTOR will resume footage rates per bid line item.  After an initial 

lost circulation event has occurred, should circulation be lost again, the conditions of the 

paragraph will go into effect immediately, and continue until such time as drilling fluid 

circulation is regained with full or partial returns of drilling fluid at the land surface. 

GLORIETA shall not incur costs for drilling fluids or additives placed in the borehole during 

non-lost circulation conditions except as outlined above.  

 

If lost circulation is the result of CONTRACTOR’S operations or activities (e.g., excessive 

fluid weight), all costs to regain circulation shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR. The 

conditions of this Section shall apply from the beginning of the time period of lost circulation, 

with no returns at the land surface, and shall continue only until such time as drilling fluid 

circulation is regained, with full or partial returns of drilling fluid at the land surface.  

 

Question No. 7:  Do you have the logs from the two wells that are to be abandoned?  Will you 

be adding a line item for abandonment?  Are you wanting us to perform a ‘below grade’ 

abandonment?  Is one of these wells in a vault? 

Answer No. 7:   Well logs are not available from the New Mexico Office of the State Engineer 

database.  The Plugging and Abandonment Plan of Operations (Plans) for the two wells to be 

abandoned are included with this addendum.  The CONTRACTOR shall follow the Plans in 

the field and complete the associated reporting requirements.  A “below grade” abandonment 
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is not required for UP-1643, but a “below grade” abandonment is required for UP-1288.  

Neither well is in a vault. 

 

Question No. 8:  Section 13310 mention that the driller must have both a well drillers license 

and must also have the appropriate General Contractor license required by the State.  Please 

confirm that both apply.  

Answer No. 8:  The prime contractor and all subcontractors shall have the required licenses to 

complete the scope of work.  The drilling contractor may not be required to have a General 

Contractor license if all of their scope of work is covered by their current New Mexico drillers 

license. 

 

Question No. 9:  Section 13310, Part 1.1 D 1 A states a 20” conductor will be installed.  The 

drawings show an 18” conductor will be installed.  I would guess that the 20” is correct but 

please confirm. 

Answer No. 9: A 20” casing is correct as stated in the specifications.  Well casing and screen 

shall be 10.75” high strength low alloy (HSLA) steel. 

 

Question No. 10:  Can you please provide any nearby well logs particularly to the depths to 

which this will is anticipated. 

Answer No. 10: A New Mexico Office of the State Engineer Report is attached to this addendum 

that provides information for the wells located at the Glorieta Conference Center 

 

Question No. 11:  How much time is anticipated between Phase 1 of the well drilling and Phase 

2 of the well drilling.  Will this require demobilization and re-mobilization of the rig or are you 

expecting hours? 

Answer No. 11: The time between Phase 1 and Phase 2 is dependent on water quality results.  

If the water quality results from the zone sampling are not acceptable with concentrations 

exceeding NMAC 19.27.2.3103 Standards for Ground Water of 10,000 mg/L TDS or less, Phase 

2 will not be completed. Refer to Section 3.9 A. 

 

If the water quality results are acceptable, then Phase 2 shall proceed as follows: the final well 

design will be provided to the contractor who shall order the well construction materials.   The 

drilling contractor is expected to begin reaming of the pilot hole so well construction may begin 

when materials are delivered.  It is understood that delivery times may impact the schedule.  

Phase 2 has a line item for mobilization/demobilization. 

 

Question No. 12:  Shall both mud and cuttings be disposed of offsite by the driller?  Does the 

Owner have a location that is acceptable for either of these items? 

Answer No. 12:  An alternate line item is in the bid table for disposal of drilling mud and 

cuttings.  The actual disposal will be negotiated with the contractor during the contracting 

process.  

 

In accordance with regulatory requirements, drill cuttings may be thin-spread around the drill 

site as directed by the Engineer.  Drilling mud shall be hauled-off and removed from the site.  

Initial development water that resembles drilling fluid shall also be hauled-off and removed 

from site as directed by the engineer.  Later stages of development water that is clearer and 

water from aquifer testing may be spread on the ground using a line that is 150 feet from the 

well in a manner as not to cause excessive erosion. 
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Question No. 13:  The specifications mentioned that the location of the discharge well 

development is shown on the drawings.  I did not see the location shown on the drawings as 

indicated.  Can you please describe the location of the well discharge and if it is a waters of the 

US?  Are any special permits required for this discharge? 

Answer No. 13:  A notice of intent (NOI) and storm water pollution prevention plan SWPPP 

are required.  Water is expected to be discharged to the ground using 150 feet of hose or pipe 

in such a manner as not to cause excessive erosion. 

 

Question No. 14:  It seemed to me that there was a reference during the pre-bid meeting of 

depth specific zonal samples being conducted, though I was unable to locate any verbiage 

related thereto in the specifications.  I may have misunderstood.  Can you confirm whether 

depth specific zonal sampling will be conducted on the pilot hole?  There is an isolated reference 

in Section 13310 1.1 D.1.b to collecting water samples in zones, and another reference in Section 

13310 1.1 E; but otherwise there is not a description of what procedure the driller should use to 

affect zonal sampling, how much time to develop each zone, what size grave to use, etc. 

Answer No. 14: Modify Specification Section 13310 by adding Part. 3.9.A.3 to include the 

following: 

 

Phase 1 is drilling a pilot hole and collecting a zonal sample to determine water quality and is 

intended to guide the final well design.  A zonal sample will be collected from a temporary well 

that is constructed on drill pipe with a 20-foot length of well screen.  The zone will have pea 

gravel and a bentonite seal.  The exact depth will be determined in the field but is likely to 

between 1000 to 1200 feet below ground surface.  The zone will be developed by air-lifting for 

4 hours and a sample shall be collected for laboratory analyses. 

 

Question No. 15:  With regard to development procedures referenced in Section 3.6 Well 

Development; will necessary connection time to affect the swabbing or airlifting at greater or 

shallower depths be considered “actual time spent developing” the well.  Please advise. 

Answer No. 15: The time includes connection times while actively engaged in air-lift 

development. 

 

Question No. 16:  Section 3.6 Well Development references “circulation of fluids” before and 

after the well is completed.  Please explain this section as it is generally unclear what it is 

referring to. 

Answer No. 16:  Upon well completion, the circulation of fluids includes thinning the drilling 

mud before construction and flushing the well with clear water during the initial stages of 

development. 

 

Question No. 17:  Does the County have an or will the County consider a price escalation clause 

in the event the prices of materials change between the time of bid and the time of order.  This 

is needed due to the highly volatile steel and sand markets currently. 

Answer No. 17:  The County may consider any cost escalation clause, but the awarded 

Contractor would be required to provide documented proof of any cost escalations. 

 

Question No. 18:  Are there any prohibitions or restrictions on the prime bidder or general 

contractor performing more or less work than their subcontractors? 
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Answer No. 18:  The Bidders must list all of their subcontractors in their bid documents that 

will be performing work on the project.  If the General Contractor is going to perform some of 

the work that is typically subcontracted, then they need to specify that work in their bid. 

 

Question No. 19:  If the bidder proposes a timeline or completion schedule that is different than 

that anticipated in the specifications, will the bidder shall be considered responsive? 

Answer No. 19:  The County will base its award on the most responsive and lowest bid.  As such, 

the most advantageous timeline and completion schedule for the project and the County, would 

be a factor with regards to “responsive”.  However, the County cannot make that determination 

at this time whether or not a bidder would be deemed non-responsive, if the bidder proposes a 

timeline different than what is anticipated in the specifications.   

 

Construction Contract Documents and Technical Specifications:  

 

1. Bid Form- Replace Bid Sheet Table in its entirety with the Attached.  

2. Replace Specification Section 01150 with the Attached.     

 

Contract Drawings:  

 

1. Sheet G-01:   

 Delete G-00 in the INDEX OF SHEETS 

2. Sheets C-01 through C-03 

 Station 71+60.4 to Station 119+20:  Change all 8” diameter piping waterline and 

fittings to 6” PVC to 6” diameter PVC.   

3. Sheet G-01 

 Add the following Note 12 to GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES:  

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTE 12. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL 

ALL WATER UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

MOST CURRENT EDITION OF THE SANTA FE COUNTY WATER 

UTILITIES WATER AND SEWER CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND 

SPECIFICATIONS.  IF THERE IS A CONFLICT BETWEEN ANY 

CONTRACT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, THE STRICTER 

REQUIREMENT SHALL APPLY. 

4. Sheet G-02 

 Add the following Note 9 to the WATER SYSTEM NOTES: 

WATER SYSTEM NOTE 9. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE A FLOW 

TEST ON ALL FIRE HYDRANTS AND COLOR CODE THE HYDRANTS IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH SANTA FE COUNTY UTILITY STANDARDS. 

5. Sheet G-06, SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL B 

 Add a CONSTRUCTION NOTE M to read as follows:  

CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL IN-LINE BRASS BALL VALVE WITH 

LOCKABLE TEE-HEAD STEM AND VALVE CAN DOWNSTREAM OF ALL 

WATER SERVICE METERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SANTA FE COUNTY 

UTILITLY STANDARDS.  VALVE SIZE TO MATCH SIZE OF SERVICE 

LINE. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH GLORIETA 

ASSOCIATION OPERATOR REGARDING FINAL LOCATION OF IN-LINE 

VALVE AND RELOCATED METERS. 
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6. Sheets C-01 through C-03 

 Station 71+60.4 to Station 119+20:  Change all 8” diameter piping waterline and 

fittings to 6” PVC to 6” diameter PVC.   

7. Sheets C-01 through C-05 

 Add the following General Notes:  

GENERAL NOTE 6. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL WATER 

UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MOST 

CURRENT EDITION OF THE SANTA FE COUNTY WATER UTILITIES 

WATER AND SEWER CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND 

SPECIFICATIONS.  IF THERE IS A CONFLICT BETWEEN ANY 

CONTRACT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, THE STRICTER 

REQUIREMENT SHALL APPLY.  

 GENERAL NOTE 7. CONTRACTOR SHALL PATCH ALL DISTURBED 

PAVEMENT PER DETAIL PROVIDED BELOW.  

 GENERAL NOTE 8. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL ALL AIR VAC VALVES 

PER DETAIL 2/SHEET G-05 OR PER SANTA FE COUNTY STANDARDS. 

THE STRICTER REQUIREMENT SHALL APPLY.   

 
 

8.  Sheet C-01 

 Add Keyed Note 4 at Station 80+64.04 to read as follows:  

CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL WATERLINE UNDER EXISTING 

CULVERTS AND SUPPORT CULVERTS IN PLACE WITHOUT 

REMOVING OR DISTURBING THE CULVERTS. 

 Add the following installation note at intersection of County Road 63/La Joya 

Road and SUNSHINES PLACE (Near Station 78+00);  

INSTALL 6”x2” SADDLE TAP AND 1-2” VALVE TO WEST 

 Add the following installation note at intersection of County Road 63/La Joya 

Road and Camino Dos Millas (between station 81+50 and 82+00;  

INSTALL 6”x2” SADDLE TAP AND 1-2” VALVE TO EAST 

9. Sheet C-04 
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 Add following installation note at high point of line (approximate Station

121+25):

INSTALL AIR VAC VALVE PER DETAIL 2/SHEET G-05.

Please add this Addendum No. 2 to the original proposal documents and refer to proposal documents, 

hereto as such.  This and all subsequent addenda will become part of any resulting contract documents 

and have effects as if original issued.  All other unaffected sections will have their original 

interpretation and remain in full force and effect.  Responders are reminded that any questions or need 

for clarification must be addressed to Amanda Patterson-Sanchez, Procurement Specialist Senior at 

apatterson-sanchez@santafecountynm.gov.  

mailto:apatterson-sanchez@santafecountynm.gov
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A HYDROGEOLOGIC EVALUATION OF THE UPPER PECOS GROUND WATER BASIN IN THE
VICINITY OF THE GLORIETA BAPTIST CONFERENCE CENTER, GLORIETA, NEW MEXICO.

Introduction

It has been found necessary to make a determination as to whether the

underground rights claimed by the Glorieta Baptist Conference Center in

Glorieta, New Mexico, are hydrologically related to the surface water flow

of Glorieta Creek. Drawdown effects to certain nearby wells due to

pumping by the Center have also been found necessary to estimate. Limited

water level data suggest that the deep water producing zones penetrated by

the Conference Center wells are not hydrologically connected to Glorieta

Creek in the vicinity of the village of Glorieta. Some of these water

producing zones may be hydrologically connected to the Pecos River. The

drawdown caused by the pumping of the Center wells may be greater than sao

feet in a 40 year period in a nearby well owned by the Glorieta Mutual

Water Users Association.

Water Rights

According to the State Engineer Office water rights file for the

Conference Center, the following underground rights are claimed:

file 1/ location well depth

UP-373 SEI/4SW1/4SW1/4 S.22 T.16 N. ,R.ll E. 800 feet

UP-374 NE1/4SW1/4SW1/4 S.22 " " 385 feet

UP-375 NW1/4NWl/4SE1/4 S.21 " " 934 feet

UP-376 NE1/4NWl/4NW1/4 S.27 " " 313 feet

UP-377 NE1/4NW1/4SW1/4 S.27 " " 877 feet

UP-378 NW1/4NE1/4SE1/4 S.28 " " 250 feet



The total claimed right is for a diversion of 887.5 acre-feet per annum of

water, with 869.4 acre-feet declared and 18.1 acre-feet transferred into

the wells from a surface water diversion located at the NWI/4 NWI/4 of

Section 27, Township 16 N., Range 11 E.

According to Craig Hipple of the Roswell State Engineer Office, the

original diversion of water from Glorieta Creek at the Center location,

made in 1883 by area homesteaders, was from the NWI/4 SW1/4 of Section 22,

T. 16 N., R. 11 E. This is within the present boundary of the Baptist

Center, at the location of the intersection of the streambeds of Ruiz and

Glorieta Canyons. This is upstream from the Center wells and about 1000

feet from the nearest Center well (see attached map).

An examination of State Engineer Office water rights files and the

1977 Upper Pecos Hydrographic Survey does not indicate that any other

water users exist within several miles and within the same ground water

basin that have established priorities between 1883 and 1950. Mourant's

report (1980) lists a nearby well owned by the Glorieta Mutual Water Users

Association which was drilled in 1946. There are no well records on file

for the area above the Center within the Glorieta Creek watershed.

Hydrogeology

Glorieta Creek has its headwaters several miles north of the Center

on Glorieta Baldy and flows intermittently, until it is within about four

miles of its confluence with the Pecos River south of Pecos. At that

point, three miles or more downstream from the Center, the 1953 U.S.G.S.

topographic map shows the creek as becoming perennial (thus, indicating

that the creek was intermittent Within the area of the Center in 1953).

The creek runs through the Center and is flanked on both sides by the six
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Center wells. Four of the wells are located within 1,000 feet of the

creekbed (see attached map).

A field inspection made on Glorieta Creek on February 12, 1990,

showed a shallow, narrow stream channel for Glorieta Creek where it runs

through the Conference Center grounds. In most locations the bed was dry,

with only small pools of water where snowmelt was occurring. All

tributaries within the Center grounds, including the one from Ruiz Canyon,

were dry and also had shallow, narrow stream beds. No springs or surface

flow were evident at the 1883 point of diversion. Water was not flowing

at any location within the Center property. The pond which the Center

maintains on Glorieta Creek at about the center of its grounds was

completely dry on this date. About 0.5 mile downstream from the Center

there was some flow in Glorieta Creek (less than 1 cfs), but this flow was

discontinuous. It appears that, at least at the present time, Glorieta

Creek is intermittent from the Conference Center to its confluence with

the Pecos River.

Glorieta Creek in its mains tern begins its flow over the Precambrian

granite of Glorieta Baldy. The creek bed continues over this formation

for two miles or more and then encounters the Permian to Upper

Pennsylvanian Sangre de Cristo Formation. According to Budding (1972),

this formation consists of mudstones alternating with sandstone and

arkosic conglomerate and varies from 435 to more than 2,000 feet thick. A

cross-section presented by Budding which ends about 0.5 mile southwest of

the Center shows the thickness of the formation at that point to be about

2,000 feet. Glorieta Creek continues its traverse over the Sangre de

Cristo Formation until its confluence with the Pecos River.
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Underlying the Sangre de Cristo Formation is the Pennsylvanian

Magdalena Group, which is at least 800 feet thick (Budding, 1972). This

group is predominantly limestone, but also consists of sandstone and

shale. The contact with the Magdalena and the Sangre de Cristo Formation

is gradational in most places (Griggs and Hendrickson, 1951). Some of the

tributaries of Glorieta Creek have their headwaters in outcrop areas of

the Magdalena Group.

Griggs and Hendrickson (1951) state that no visible discharge has

been noted to occur from the Sangre de Cristo Formation in San Miguel

County. Glorieta Creek crosses from Santa Fe County into San Miguel

County about three miles below the Center. Geologic maps of the Glorieta

area do not indicate the presence of any springs or fault zones within the

Baptist Center property or for two miles upstream along Glorieta Creek or

its tributaries. If springs were present and were hydrologically

connected to the aquifer utilized by the subject wells, then pumping by

the Center could influence these springs, which could affect area stream

flows. Available information suggests that this is not the case.

At about two miles upstream from the Center the creek crosses the

Deer Creek Fault, which separates the Precambrian granite and the Sangre

de Cristo Formation. Ruiz and other tributary canyons also intersect this

fault and traverse outcroppings of the Magdalena Group at the faulted

area. The Magdalena and Sangre de Cristo Formations downdip 10 degrees or

more from the fault to the Glorieta syncline (Budding, 1972) ,thus

indicating a possible recharge area rather than a discharge area for these

formations. It is possible that some ground water may emerge along the

fault from the Precambrian granite, although thiS formation typically

transmits very little water. If water does emerge at the Deer Creek fault
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from the granite and flows into Glorieta Creek or its tributaries. it does

so only on an intermittent basis and only in small amounts, judging by the

size of streambeds entering the Center grounds. Such a small amount of

water most likely would not flow a distance of two miles from the fault

zone to the Center's property, but would evaporate or seep back into the

soil.

Griggs and Hendrickson (1951) state that in San Miguel County nearly

all of the normal flow of the Pecos River and its upper tributaries comes

from the Magdalena Group. which outcrops in much of the area above the

town of Pecos. Since two of the Center wells may be producing water from

zones of gradation between the Sangre de Cristo Formation and the

Magdalena Group, there may be a hydrologic connection between these wells

and the Pecos River. At what point along the river such a connection

would exist is uncertain.

Well Data

Well logs exist for the three deepest Center wells. UP-377, with a

total depth of 877 feet. a static water level of 100 feet and a pumping

capacity of 325 gpm (as claimed on the declaration), is drilled completely

within layers of the Sangre de Cristo Formation. The well log classifies

14 percent of the section as water bearing, with water produced at 629

feet and below.

The well log for UP-373 shows layers of gravel, sand. mud and shale

with, below 500 feet. layers of limestone. This well may be drilled into

an area of gradation between the Sangre de Cristo Formation and the

Magdalena Group. It is located immediately adjacent to Glorieta Creek and

has a static water level of 225 feet with a pumping capacity of 250 gpm
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(as stated on the declaration). Water bearing strata include a limestone

layer from 270 to 280 feet, a sand layer at 778 to 780 feet and a sand and

limestone layer at 780 to 785 feet.

UP-375 is drilled to 934 feet and has a declared static water level

of 160 feet below land surface with a pumping capacity of 35 gpm. The

well log shows water first produced from layers of shale and sandstone at

about 280 feet below land surface. Water is also produced from sandstone

layers between 327 and 344 feet, a sandstone at 508 to 520 feet, limestone

and sand layers between 575 and 598 feet, sandstone between 655 and 680

feet, sandstone between 697 and 714 feet and limestone layers between 735

to 742 feet and 838 to 850 feet. The

frequency of limestone layers below 700

is drilled into an area of gradation

well log shows an increasing

feet, which may indicate that it

between the Sangre de Cristo

Formation and the Magdalena Group.

Static water levels are also available on the declarations for UP-374

and UP-376. These are 120 and 150 feet, respectively. Both of these

wells are located immediately adjacent to Glorieta Creek. The declared

pumping capacities of UP-374, UP-376 and UP-378 are, respectively, 38 gpm,

35 gpm and 10 gpm.

Examination of 30 well logs for other wells located along or near

Glorieta Creek from the Conference Center to its confluence with the Pecos

River show'first water bearing strata at 20 to 270 feet, with an average

of about 84 feet below land surface. Based on available well data, it is

apparent that all wells at the Center and below it along of the creek are

supplied from one or more water producing layers at depth and that there

exists a large unsaturated zone below the bed of Glorieta Creek. Thus,

limited informati9n suggests that wells
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for the aquifer, which was

value of 0.002 was derived.

about 1/2 mile to the west

hydrologically connected to surface water which may occasionally flow in

Glorieta Creek.

Impacts of PUJIlPing by the Baptist Center

In order to determine the possible maximum drawdown which might occur

on the Glorieta Mutual Water Users Association well due to pumping from

the Baptist Center wells, a Theis analysis was conducted for a worst case

situation. The Glorieta MWUA well is located about 1200 feet to the

southwest of Center well UP-377. In 1968 an aquifer test was performed on

UP-377. Analysis of this test by the State Engineer Office provided a

transmissivity value for the aquifer of 739 gallons per day per foot

(gpd/ft). Using Lohman's (1979) method for estimating storage coefficient

assumed to have a thickness of 2,000 feet, a

A no-flow boundary was assumed to exist at

of the Center. Assuming a combined total

depletion of 887.5 acre-feet per annum from the four nearest wells to the

Glorieta MWUA well (at the declared pumping capacities up to the total

depletion rate), drawdowns'in that well are estimated to be 405 feet in 10

years and 592 feet in 40 years (a computer printout of the results is

provided in the appendix). Mourant (1980) indicates that the Glorieta

MWUA well is completed to a depth of 275 feet and had a reported depth of

water of 161 feet.

Summary

Glorieta Greek, intermittent for all but perhaps the last few miles

of its length, may be partially supplied by ground water from the

Precambrian granite, the Sangre de Cristo Formation and/or the Magdalena
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Group. The Conference Center wells are supplied by deep water-bearing

layers in the Sangre de Cristo Formation and possibly upper layers of the

Magdalena Group. It appears unlikely that the water supplying the Center

wells is hydrologically connected to Glorieta Creek at or near the

Conference Center. There may be a hydrologic connection, however, between

two of the Center wells and the Pecos River, since both may be supplied,

at least in part, by water from the limestone of the Magdalena Group.

Drawdowns caused by the full claimed pumpage from these wells could be as

much as 400 feet in the 1946 Glorieta Mutual Water Users Association well

after 10 years of pumping by the Center.
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APPENDIX

DRAWDOW~ AT RANDOM COORDINATES IN AN INFINITE
STRIP, NON - LEAKY AQUIFER WITH A PLANE BOUNDARY
AT Y ; a AND ANOTHER PLANE BOUNDARY AT
SOME Y. DUE TO PUMPING MULTIPLE WELLS LOCATED
AT RANDOM POINTS. EACH WELL ~~y HAVE A DIFFERENT
PUMPING SCHEDULE. ALL COORDINATES IN THE X - Y PLANE.

(Theis equation)

T = 739. gpd/ft 5 = .002000

Plane boundary at Y = 0 feet and another plane boundary at Y =1000000.0 feet

Number of pumping wells = 4

Coordinates of pu~ping wells and the no. of pumping rates

X Coordinate y Coordinate No. of Pumping Ratas

X( 1 ) = 3120. 0 f~et V( 11 13150. " feet No. r:tes 1 ) =
XC 2l = 1250. 0 feet Y( 2 ) 13500. 0 feet No. rat:.es 2)

:« 3 ) = 3230. 0 feet Y( 3 ) = 15800. 0 feet No. rates 3 ) =

X( 4 ) = 3280 .0 fe8't Y( 4 ) = 16450 .0 feet No. rates " =

PUMPING SCP.EDULES ~OR THE WELLS

Well Schedule for Pumping Well Number

Pumping Rate

Q( 1)::; 325.0 gpm

Pumping Time

Pumping time! 1)::; 14610.000 days
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Well Schedule for Pumping Well Number 2

Pumping Rate Pumping Time

Q( 1)' 10.0 gpm Pumping time( 1) = 14610.000 days

Well Schedule for Pumping Well Number 3

Pumping Rate Pumping Time

Q( 1)' 35.0 gpm Pumping time( 1) = 14610.000 days

Well Schedule for Pumping Well Number 4

Pumping Rate

Q( 1) = 190.0 gpm

Pumping Time

Pumping tim-e( 1) = 14610.000 days

Coordinates of Computation Points

Ulumber of computatif)n points = 1)
X Coordinates Y Coordinates

X( l) = !ossa. a teet

Image Control =

Y( 1)

.00000100

11
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t min = 1826.250 days;

time variable (t)

t max = 14610.000 days; delta t = 1826.250 days

Time in days Coordinates of computation points in feet, and drawdown values in feet

X
1650.0

y
13000.0

1826.250 333.006

3652.500 405.155

5478.750 454. 235

730.5.000 492 062

9131.250 522.938

10957.500 549 .049

12783.750 571. 679

14610.000 591.649
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